
MINUTES 
 

CITY OF DELANO 
CITY COUNCIL – REGULAR MEETING 

February 18, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Vallejo called the meeting to order at 5:42 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 1015 – 

 

 
Avenue. 

INVOCATION 
 
Mayor Vallejo asked all those present to observe a moment of silence. 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
Students from Princeton Elementary School led the flag salute. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Council members present:  Aguirre, Chavez (left at 6:42 p.m.), Morris, Pascual, Vallejo 
Council members absent:  none 
 

OFFICIALS PRESENT 
 
City Manager Reyna, City Attorney Garcia, City Clerk Kraft, Finance Director Rios, Police Chief 
DeRosia, City Engineer Dowling, Human Resources Director Zamudio, Economic Specialist Castro 
 

PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
 Safe Surrender Baby Awareness Month – February 2014 
 Read Across America – February 28, 2014 
 

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Lena Mae Jones, 1116 Lexington Street, announced there will be a celebration at Martin Luther King Jr. 
Park on February 22, from 11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
 
Ethel Pickering, 102 Dover Place, thanked Council for the Martin Luther King Jr. park sign, and stated 
the park needs more tables and chairs. 
 
Dorothy Morgan stated it has been three months since her son was killed in Kalibo Park.  She asked how 
we can make the parks safe for kids and stated there is a need for more lights and cameras in the parks.  
Ms. Morgan stated we need more activities for kids.  She asked if she can keep the memorial spot for her 
son in the park. 
 
Valerie Gorospe, Center on Race, Poverty, and the Environment, asked if there is a way for the public to 
see staff reports.  She stated it would be great for the public to know what will be discussed at the council 
meetings.  She stated that budget decisions were made at special meeting.  She asked that items 5 and  6 
be pulled from the consent agenda for discussion. 



 
David Marino asked that items 7, 8, and 9 be pulled for discussion. 
 
Richard Markham, 315 Dover Drive, stated that something needs to be done about shopping carts in his 
neighborhood and the stores need to be responsible for them. 
 
Manuel, 315 – 
 

 Avenue, asked how the city will go about getting a clinic for veterans. 

Bill Hylton, 1515 – 

 

 Avenue, noted that at the last Council meeting, $500 was designated for senior 
citizens, but that is not very much.  The senior center needs delivery carts and a freezer. 

Penny Sanders, 602 Dover Place, (teenager) stated that the youth in Delano need something to keep them 
active and out of trouble. 
 
Sunshine Carter, 2022 County Line Road, stated that the city is responsible for the public safety even in 
Tulare County.  She noted that vendors are out on County Line Road at night and the city needs to put up 
lights. 
 
Ms. Mendez stated that council has power regarding Tulare County.  She noted the Delano welcome sign 
is in Tulare County.  She stated that council never answers the public’s questions. 
 
Penny Sanders, 602 Dover Place, (senior citizen) stated that the bus station is an eyesore and we need a 
better image of our town. 
 
Giovanni Bravel stated that council sends the public speakers to the city manager and asked why council  
can’t answer. 
 
Claudia Lucas stated that the notice regarding the event in the park just went out this week. 
 
Mr. Garcia noted there seems to be confusion among the public regarding the Brown Act.  He suggested 
he can make a presentation to council and the public.  Mayor Vallejo suggested staff put a notice in the 
Shoppers’ Guide regarding the presentation. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1) Authorization to waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution in its entirety and 
consenting to the reading of such ordinances or resolutions by title only 

 
2) Warrant Register in the amount of $3,876,401.57 

 
3) Minutes of regular City Council meeting of February 3, 2014; special meeting of 

February 11, 2014 
 
4) Minutes of regular Pension Committee meeting of November 4, 2013 
 
5) Approve amendment to City Manager employment agreement    Agreement No. 2014-07 
 
6) Acceptance by the City Council of the audit of the following:  City’s Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2013; Single Audit Report as required by 
OMB Circular A-133 for the year ended June 30, 2013; City of Delano’s Employee 
Pension Plan for the year ended June 30, 2013 



 
7) Resolution No. 2014-12 of the City Council of the City of Delano awarding the contract 

to Municipal Maintenance Equipment Inc. (with financing by Leasing 2, Inc.) for the 
lease purchase of one (1) sewer vacuum-jetter combination truck, and authorizing the 
expenditure of fund in the amount of $362,074.74 for a term of six (6) years, with annual 
payments of $60,345.79, and authorizing the city manager to execute all required 
documents    Agreement No. 2014-08 

 
8) Resolution No. 2014-13 of the City Council of the City of Delano awarding a contract to 

Mar-Co Equipment Company (with financing by California First National Bank) for the 
lease purchase of one (1) street sweeper truck, authorizing the expenditure of 
$266,589.78 over a term of six (6) years, with annual payments of $44,431.63, and 
authorizing the city manager to execute all required documents    Agreement No. 2014-09 

 
9) Resolution No. 2014-14 of the City Council of the City of Delano awarding a contract to 

Central Valley GMC dba Central Valley Truck Center (with financing by KS State Bank) 
for the lease purchase of a new side loading refuse truck, authorizing the expenditure of 
funds in the amount of $284,247.85 over a term of six (6) years, with annual payments of 
$43,374.64 and authorizing the city manager to execute all required documents    
Agreement No. 2014-10 

 
10) Release of funds from developer escrow account to Delano Retail Center (Delano Market 

Place) per the developer escrow agreement for the required offsite improvements in the 
amount of $318,115.81 

 
Mayor Vallejo noted the public has requested items #5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 be pulled for discussion. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Pascual, and unanimously carried to approve 
the Consent Agenda with items #5, 6, 7, 8, 9 pulled for discussion. 
 
Item #5)  Valerie Gorospe asked what changes were made to the contract, when the last change to the 
contract was made, if the changes are a result of the evaluation done at a recent city council meeting, what 
raise, if any, was given.  Mr. Garcia answered that the city manager has an annual evaluation that occurs 
in closed session and the results are confidential.  Any changes to the contract have to be approved in 
open session.  The only change being proposed is a one year extension to the contract.  No raise is in the 
proposed amendment. 
 
Item #6)  Valerie Gorospe asked that the report be read for the record and asked if there were any 
recommended changes and or suggestions made, were any challenges or discrepancies in any department 
found and if so that those be explained in detail for the public record.  Mr. Garcia answered that the entire 
audit report is a public record.  Staff are not obligated to read any part of it and to do so could be 
misleading because the audit report as a whole is what matters.  It is available for review in the City 
Clerk’s office.  The first two pages of the report present the auditors’ conclusion.  The report is also 
available on the city’s web site. 
 
Item #7)  David Marino asked if there are state or federal grants available for this purchase.  Mr. Dowling 
replied that staff has searched for grants for several years and have not found any. 
 
Item #8)  David Marino asked if this will be a new sweeper or replacing one.  Mr. Dowling stated this is a 
replacement sweeper. 
 



Item #9)  David Marino stated his questions are the same as for items #7 and #8.  Mr. Dowling explained 
this is a replacement. 
 
Moved by Councilman Aguirre, seconded by Councilman Pascual and unanimously carried to approve 
items #5, 6, 7, 8, and 9. 
 
Councilman Chavez left the meeting at 6:42 p.m. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
No items 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

11) Resolution of the City Council of the City of Delano authorizing the purchase of 219 –  
Avenue and 1511 – 

 
 Avenue from the Kern County Treasurer and Tax Collector 

Ms. Castro presented the staff report. 
 
Roberto Ibarra asked if the city is in the business of flipping houses; if the city wants to avoid realtors; 
and if the city has a list of houses or people who want houses.  Ms. Reyna explained that it is not the 
intent of the city to make a profit or flip houses.  The objective is to clean up the city and provide 
affordable housing.  The properties purchased by the city have been in tax default for at least five years.  
Self-Help or Habitat for Humanity works with the city to provide the houses to qualified owners. 
 
Richard Markham stated the city did a good job on the house on Albany, but should not spend any funds 
on the house on 
 

. 

Ethel Pickering asked what the city does with the money from the houses it sells and how much money 
the city gets back.  Councilwoman Morris stated that by law the city has a responsibility to provide 
affordable housing.  Ms. Reyna explained that the amount of money the city gets back on each house 
depends on the cost of the house and the rehabilitation.  The city does not solicit to buy houses.  Kern 
County comes to the city and give us first opportunity to purchase tax default property. 
 
Moved by Councilman Pascual, seconded by Councilwoman Morris and unanimously carried by all those 
present to adopt Resolution No. 2014-15 authorizing the purchase of 219- Avenue and 1511-

 

 Avenue 
from the Kern County Treasurer and Tax Collector.    Agreement No. 2014-11 

12) Resolution of the City Council of the City of Delano authorizing the City Engineer to 
sign Program Supplemental Agreement No. 019-N with the State of California to allow 
for reimbursements on Project STPCML-5227(046) [street rehabilitation, resurfacing & 
shoulder improvements on Hiett Avenue from Cecil Avenue to County Line Road;  
Avenue from Albany Street to Ellington Street; and 

 

 Avenue from Albany Street to Clark 
Street] 

Mr. Dowling presented the staff report.  Staff will bring an item to the next meeting for the agreement for 
the work to be done. 
 
Roberto Ibarra asked if the work is already done and if we are going to have a bike lane.  Mr. Dowling 
explained that the funding is for shoulder stabilization but there are not enough funds for a bike lane.  
Funds come through KernCOG which has now issued a call for projects for fiscal year 2015-2016.  
 



Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Aguirre and unanimously carried by all those 
present to adopt Resolution No. 2014-16 authorizing the City Engineer to sign Program Supplemental 
Agreement No. 019-N with the State of California to allow for reimbursements on Project STPCML-
5227(046).   Agreement No. 2014-12 
 

13) Resolution of the City Council of the City of Delano authorizing the City Engineer to 
sign Program Supplemental Agreement No. 020-N with the State to allow 
reimbursements on Project STPCML-5227(045) [street rehabilitation, resurfacing & 
shoulder improvements on  Avenue from Fremont Street to High Street;  Avenue from 
Randolph Street to Browning Road; 

 
 Avenue from Fremont Street to High Street] 

Mr. Dowling presented the staff report.  He explained this is the same as the previous item but for 
different areas. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Aguirre and unanimously carried by all those 
present to adopt Resolution No. 2014-17 authorizing the City Engineer to sign Program Supplemental 
Agreement No. 020-N with the State to allow for reimbursement on Project STPCML-5227(045).  
Agreement No. 2014-13 

 
14) Resolution of the City Council of the City of Delano authorizing the City Manager to 

sign and submit the Application for Public Benefit Grant Program / New Alternative Fuel 
Vehicle Purchase with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) 
and execute any subsequent grant agreement or any other needed documents for 
implementation of the new vehicle grant if awarded 

 
Mr. Dowling presented the staff report.  He noted the two vehicles previously purchased through this 
program are for the water department.  These will be for the Public Works Inspector, city hall pool car, 
and one for recreation. 
 
Roberto Ibarra asked what the city does with older cars.  Mr. Dowling explained they are declared surplus 
and auctioned. 
 
Moved by Councilman Aguirre, seconded by Councilman Pascual and unanimously carried by all those 
present to adopt Resolution No. 2014-18 authorizing the City Manager to sign and submit the Application 
for Public Benefit Grant Program / New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase.     Agreement No. 2014-14 

 
15) Resolution of the City Council of the City of  Delano approving the purchase of property 

from California Department of Transportation and declaring a public purpose for its use 
(156.9 square foot parcel in the vicinity of Woollomes Avenue – SR 99 Interchange) 

 
Mr. Dowling presented the staff report.  This is a clean-up item for the Woollomes bridge project. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Aguirre and unanimously carried to adopt 
Resolution No. 2014-19 approving the purchase of property from California Department of 
Transportation and declaring a public purpose for its use.    Agreement No. 2014-15 

 
16) Approval of agreement with Peters Engineering Group to provide professional services 

related to the Glenwood Extension Project in the amount of $35,575 
 

Mr. Dowling presented the staff report. 
 



Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Aguirre and unanimously carried to approve 
an agreement with Peters Engineering Group to provide professional services related to the Glenwood 
Extension Project.    Agreement No. 2014-16 

 
17) Approval of purchase of SMARTGov software subscription and related services for 

startup and maintenance as the City’s new web based permit system, and appropriation of 
$34,561 to cover said purchase, and authorization for the City Manager to sign all 
necessary documents 

 
Mr. Dowling presented the staff report. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Pascual and unanimously carried to approve 
the purchase of SMARTGov software subscription.   Agreement No. 2014-17 
 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
No items 
 

COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
Councilman Chavez
 

 (not present) 

Councilwoman Morris

 

 thanked the Chamber of Commerce for the flyer on the Identity Theft Prevention 
program to be held February 27 at DRMC.  She asked everyone to pray for rain and reported that the 
League of California Cities Division meeting last week had a presentation on the drought. 

Councilman Pascual
 

 no items 

Councilman Aguirre
 

 no items 

Mayor Vallejo

 

  stated the League presentation was by Mario Santoyo, a coalition leader.  She stated that 
our water is ground water and we will probably see water rationing in valley.  We need to look at above 
ground water storage. 

CLOSED SESSION 
No items 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Aguirre, and unanimously carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 7:41 p.m. 
 
______________________ 
Phyllis A. Kraft, City Clerk 


	CALL TO ORDER
	INVOCATION
	FLAG SALUTE
	ROLL CALL
	OFFICIALS PRESENT
	PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS
	ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
	CONSENT AGENDA
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	REGULAR AGENDA
	DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS
	COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS
	CLOSED SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT

